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NATURE OF THE ACTION

1.  Thisisafedera classactionon behaf of purchasersof the common stock
of Barrier Therapeutics Inc. (“Barrier” or the “Company”) between April 29, 2004,
and June 29, 2005, inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to pursue remedies under
the Securities Act of 1933 (the “ Securities Act”) and the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. Jurisdiction is conferred by 822 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. 877v,
and 827 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §78aa and 28 U.S.C. 81331. The clams
asserted herein arise under 8811, 12(@)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act, 8877k and
770, and rules promulgated thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”), and 8810(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §878j(b) and
78t(a)] and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC [17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5].

3. VenueisproperinthisDistrict pursuant to 822 of the Securities Act, 827
of the Exchange Act and 28 U.S.C. §1391(b), §1337 and 827 [15 U.S.C. §78ad].
Defendant Barrier maintainsits principal place of businesswithin thisDistrict, and/or
the Individual Defendants, as defined herein, conduct businessin and many of the acts
giving rise to the violations complained of herein took place in this District.

4, In connection with the acts alleged in this Complaint, defendants, directly

or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce including,



but not limited to, the mails, interstate tel ephone communications and the facilities of
the national securities markets.

PARTIES

5. Paintiff Midtown Partners, Inc., as set forth in the accompanying
certification, incorporated by reference herein, purchased the common stock of Barrier
at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and has been damaged thereby.

6. Defendant Barrier is a Delaware corporation with its principa place of
business at 600 College Road East, Princeton, NJ 08540. According to the
Company’s profile, Barrier is a biopharmaceutical company, engaged in the
discovery, development, and commercialization of pharmaceutical products in the
field of dermatology. Barrier was founded in 2001 by Geert Cauwenbergh
(“ Cauwenbergh”), the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer. Whileworking at Johnson
& Johnson, Cauwenbergh assembled aportfolio of dermatological product candidates
and intellectual property and, in May 2002, acquired these assets through licenses
from Johnson & Johnson, in exchange for an equity interest in the Company.

7. Defendant Cauwenbergh was during the relevant period, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During the Class Period, defendant
Cauwenbergh signed the Company’s SEC filings, including but not limited to
Barrier's Form(s) 10-Q and Form 10-K and/or the materially false and misleading
Registration Statements and Prospectuses issued in connection with the sale and

offering of stock by the Company and others.
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8. Defendant Anne M. VanLent (“VanLent”) was during the Class Period,
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of the Company. During the
Class Period, defendant VVanL ent signed the Company’ s SEC filings, including but not
limited to Barrier’s Form(s) 10-Q and Form 10-K and/or the materially false and
mideading Registration Statements and Prospectuses issued in connection with the
sale and offering of stock by the Company and others.

9. Defendant Charles T. Nomides (“Nomides’) was during the Class Period,
Chief Operating Officer of the Company.

10. Thedefendantsreferenced abovein {17 - 9 are referred to herein asthe
“Individual Defendants.”

11. Becauseof theIndividual Defendants’ positions with the Company, they
had access to the adverse undisclosed information about its business, operations,
products, operational trends, financial statements, markets and present and future
business prospects via access to interna corporate documents (including the
Company’s operating plans, budgets and forecasts and reports of actual operations
compared thereto), conversations and connections with other corporate officers and
employees, attendance a management and Board of Directors meetings and
committees thereof and via reports and other information provided to them in
connection therewith.

12. Itisappropriateto treat the Individual Defendants asagroup for pleading

purposes and to presume that the false, misleading and incomplete information

-3-



conveyed in the Company’s public filings, press releases and other publications as
alleged herein are the collective actions of the narrowly defined group of defendants
identified above. Each of the above officers of Barrier, by virtue of their high-level
positionswith the Company, directly participated in the management of the Company,
was directly involved in the day-to-day operations of the Company at the highest
levelsand was privy to confidential proprietary information concerning the Company
and its business, operations, products, growth, financial statements, and financial
condition, as aleged herein. Said defendants were involved in drafting, producing,
reviewing and/or disseminating the false and mideading statements and information
alleged herein, were aware, or recklessly disregarded, that the false and misleading
statements were being issued regarding the Company, and approved or ratified these
statements, in violation of the federal securities laws.

13.  Asofficers and controlling persons of a publicly-held company whose
common stock was, and is, registered with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act, and
was traded on the NASDAQ National Market Exchange (the “NASDAQ”), and
governed by the provisions of the federal securities laws, the Individual Defendants
each had a duty to disseminate promptly, accurate and truthful information with
respect to the Company’ s financial condition and performance, growth, operations,
financial statements, business, products, markets, management, earnings and present
and future business prospects, and to correct any previoudly-issued statementsthat had

become materially misleading or untrue, so that the market price of the Company’s
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publicly-traded common stock would be based upon truthful and accurate information.
The Individual Defendants misrepresentations and omissions during the Class Period
violated these specific requirements and obligations.

14. The Individual Defendants participated in the drafting, preparation,
and/or approval of the various public and shareholder and investor reports and other
communications complained of herein and were aware of, or recklessly disregarded,
the misstatements contained therein and omissions therefrom, and were aware of their
materially false and miseading nature. Because of their Board membership and/or
executive and manageria positions with Barrier, each of the Individua Defendants
had accessto the adverse undisclosed information about Barrier’ s business prospects
and financial condition and performance as particularized herein and knew (or
recklessly disregarded) that these adverse facts rendered the positive representations
made by or about Barrier and its business issued or adopted by the Company
materially false and mideading.

15. The Individual Defendants, because of their positions of control and
authority as officersand/or directors of the Company, were ableto and did control the
content of the various SEC filings, press releases and other public statements
pertaining to the Company during the Class Period. Each Individual Defendant was
provided with copies of the documents aleged herein to be misleading prior to or
shortly after their issuance and/or had the ability and/or opportunity to prevent their

Issuance or cause them to be corrected. Accordingly, each of the Individual
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Defendantsis responsible for the accuracy of the public reports and rel eases detailed
herein and is therefore primarily liable for the representations contained therein.

16.  Each of the defendants is liable as a participant in a fraudulent scheme
and course of business that operated as a fraud or deceit on purchasers of Barrier
common stock by disseminating materially false and mideading statements and/or
concealing material adverse facts. The scheme: (i) deceived the investing public
regarding Barrier’s business, operations, management and the intrinsic value of
Barrier common stock; (ii) enabled defendants to register for sale and sell over 10
million shares of Company stock in connection with the Company’s Initial Public
Offering and follow-on Secondary Offering; and (iii) caused plaintiff and other
members of the Classto purchase Barrier common stock at artificially inflated prices.

PLAINTIFF'SCLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS

17.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all those who
purchased the common stock of Barrier between April 29, 2004, and June 29, 2005,
inclusive (the“Class’) and who were damaged thereby. Excluded from the Classare
defendants, the officers and directors of the Company, at al relevant times, members
of thelr immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successorsor assgns
and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest.

18. Themembersof the Classare so numerousthat joinder of all membersis

impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Barrier common shares were actively
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traded on the Nasdag. As of May 10, 2005, the Company had over 23.96 million
shares of common stock issued and outstanding. While the exact number of Class
members is unknown to plaintiff at this time and can only be ascertained through
appropriate discovery, plaintiff believes that there are hundreds or thousands of
membersin the proposed Class. Record owners and other members of the Class may
be identified from records maintained by Barrier or its transfer agent and may be
notified of the pendency of thisaction by mail, using the form of notice similar to that
customarily used in securities class actions.

19. Paintiff’'sclamsaretypica of the claimsof the membersof the Classas
all members of the Class are similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in
violation of federd law that is complained of herein.

20.  Plantiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of
the Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities
litigation.

21.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to al members of the Class
and predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.
Among the questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

(@  whether the federa securities laws were violated by defendants

acts as dleged herein;



(b)  whether statements made by defendants to the investing public
during the Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations
and management of Barrier; and

(c) towhat extent the members of the Class have sustained damages
and the proper measure of damages.

22. A classaction is superior to al other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy since joinder of al members is
impracticable. Furthermore, as the damages suffered by individual Class members
may be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation make it
Impossible for members of the Classto individually redress the wrongs done to them.
There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
Background and Overview

23. Barrier describesitself asabiopharmaceutical company, engaged in the
discovery, development, and commercialization of pharmaceutical products in the
field of dermatology. Barrier wasfounded in 2001 by Defendant Cauwenbergh, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer. While working at Johnson & Johnson,
Cauwenbergh assembled a portfolio of dermatological product candidates and
intellectual property and, in May 2002, acquired these assets through licenses from

Johnson & Johnson, in exchange for an equity interest in the Company.



24.  Prior to the Class Period, Barrier had survived primarily by raising cash
through private equity offeringsto early stage venture capital investors. By February
2004, however, defendants prepared to raise more money by conducting an Initia
Public Offering (“1PO”). The IPO was conducted in late April 2004 and allowed
Barrier to raise gross proceeds of over $86 million. Soon thereafter, in February 2005,
defendants also conducted a follow-on Secondary Offering for gross proceeds of an
additional approximate $80 million.

25. By thetime Barrier prepared to go public, defendants reported that the
Company had eight products under development, four of which were then in late
stages of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA™) approval process. Of the
four products that were purported to be well along in Phase I11 clinical trias at the
time of the IPO, Hyphanox and Zimycan were each purported to represent a
“significant market opportunity” for Barrier. The Company’s Hyphanox, an oral
formulation of itraconazole, an antifungal agent devel oped for the treatment of various
fungal infections, was purported to treat fungal infectionsaswell as, if not better than
fluconazol e, the active ingredient in the most widely prescribed oral treatment for this
disease, Diflucan. Zimycan, an antifungal agent in azinc oxide and petrolatum base
used for the treatment of diaper rash, was a so represented by defendants as providing
a significant near-term growth opportunity for the Company.

26.  According to defendants, Zimycan filled an important need in the market.

According to defendants, infant’ s diaper rash accounted for approximately one million
-9-



pediatric out-patient visits each year and, in the United States, there currently is no
prescription drug approved to treat Candida - associated digper dermatitis. Defendants
also stated that Zimycan had favorable attributes, including that it did not contain
steroids, which are inadvisable for infants.

27. By the time that the Company was preparing to conduct its 1PO, the
Phaselll clinical trialsfor the use of Zimycan in the treatment of infants with proven
Candida - associated diaper dermatitis were purported to have been underway since
thefirst quarter of 2003. In addition to the significant length of time that had passed
during these trials, investors also paid particular attention to defendant’ s statements
about the Zimycan Phase 1 trials. Thiswastrue because, previoudly, the Company
had received aNot Approvable Letter from the FDA in connection with Barrier’s
1998 New Drug Application (“NDA™) for marketing approval of Zimycan for the
broad indication of diaper dermatitis, without the complications of Candida.

28.  Accordingly, at thetime of the |PO, defendants represented that Zimycan
was safe and effective and provided benefits over currently available aternativesfor
the treatment of Candida— associated diaper dermatitis. Defendants stated that many
of the over-the-counter treatments available contained zinc oxide and petrolatum,
which form the base of Zimycan, but none contained an antifungal agent. Thus,
competing diaper rash creams are palliative treatments, and serve only to soothe
symptoms but do not effect a cure. Typically, because rashes persist if not treated

with an antifungal agent, Zimycan was presented as a very positive improvement.
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29. Atthetime of the Offering, defendants also highlighted the vast market
opportunity that purported to exist for Hyphanox. Accordingly, in addition to
addressing the shortcomings of competing alternatives such as Sporanox, for the
treatment of vaginal candidaisis, defendants a so represented that Hyphanox maybea
“more effective treatment for vaginal candidaisis, than fluconazole.” For investors,
these representations were critical because, during 2002, Diflucan/fluconazole salesto
treat vagina candidaisis were approximately $250 million worldwide and $156
million in the United States, and Sporanox sales were $26 million worldwide.

30. Infact, so important was Hyphanox to the future of the Company that,
immediately prior to the Barrier |PO and after defendants had already filed the first
Registration Statement in connection with the IPO, on February 7, 2004, defendants
announced that the Company had begun Phase 1l Trialsfor Hyphanox. According to
defendants, the end point of thistrial was to demonstrate that Hyphanox worked as
well as, if not better than, Fluconazole and Diflucan.

31. Inaddition to the foregoing, defendants' representations that Zimycan
and Hyphanox were sufficiently well investigated and tested so as to proceed to
advanced Phase I11 clinical trials were also very important to investors. Phase 11
trids are large and very highly detailed trials, and they are only supposed to occur
following a thorough investigation of the drugs and also following previous testing.
The genera order for testing new drugsthat are submitted for FDA approval include,

in part, the following:
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Pilot Studies. Pilot studies generally are conducted in alimited patient
population, approximately threeto 25 subjects, to determine whether the
product candidate warrants further clinical trials based on preliminary
indications of efficacy. These pilot studies may be performed in the
United States after an Investigational New Drug Application (“IND”)
has become effective or outside of the United States prior to thefiling of
an IND in the United States in accordance with government regulations
and institutional procedures.

Clinical Trials. Clinical trias involve the administration of the
investigational product candidate to human subjects under the
supervision of qualified investigators. Clinical trials are conducted under
protocols detailing, among other things, the objectives of the study, the
parametersto beusedin ng the safety and the effectiveness of the
drug. Each protocol must be submitted to the FDA as part of the IND
prior to beginning the trial.

32.  Typicaly, clinical evaluation involves a time-consuming and costly
three-phase sequential process. Each trial must be reviewed, approved and conducted
under the auspices of an independent Institutional Review Board, and each trial must
include the patient’s informed consent. The Phase I, Phase Il and Phase 11 trials
required, in part, the following:

Phasel.  Refers typically to closely monitored clinical trials and
includes the initial introduction of an investigational new drug into
human patientsor health volunteer subjects. Phasel clinical trialsare
designed to determine the safety, metabolism and pharmacologic
actions of a drug in humans, the potential side effects of the product
candidate’ s associated with increasing drug doses and, if possible, to
gain early evidence of the product candidate's effectiveness. Phase |
trials aso include the study of structure-activity relationships and
mechanism of action in humans, as wel as studies in which
investigational drugs are used as research tools to explore biological
phenomena or disease processes. During Phase | clinical trials,
aufficient information about a drug's pharmacokinetics and
pharmacological effects should be obtained to permit the design of
well-controlled, scientifically valid Phase || studies. The total number

-12 -



of subjects and patients included in Phase | clinical trials varies, but is
generaly in the range of 20 to 80 people.

Phasell. Refersto controlled clinical trials conducted to evaluate
appropriate dosage and the effectiveness of a drug for a particular
indication or indicationsin patientswith adisease or condition under
study and to determine the common short-term side effects and risks
associated with the drug. These clinical trials are typicaly well
controlled, closely monitored and conducted in arelatively small number
of patients, usually involving no more than several hundred subjects.

Phaselll. Refersto expanded controlled and uncontrolled clinical
trials. These clinical trials are performed after preliminary evidence
suggesting effectiveness of a drug has been obtained. Phase 111
clinicals are intended to gather additional information about the
effectiveness and safety that is needed to evaluate the overall benefit-risk
relationship of the drug and to provide an adequate basis for physician
labeling. Phase 11 trials usually include from several hundred to several
thousand subjects.

33. Insum, at the time that defendants were preparing for the April 2004
IPO, and thereafter throughout the Class Period, defendants had represented to
investors, in part, the following:

That the Company’ s Hyphanox, an oral formulation of itraconazole and
an antifungal agent developed for the treatment of various fungal
infections, was purported to treat funga infections as well as, if not
better than, fluconazole, the active ingredient in the most widely
prescribed oral treatment for this disease, Diflucan.

That following the Not Approvable Letter from the FDA related to
Barrier' s 1998 NDA for Zimycan, defendants had verified that this drug
was effective for treating digper dermatitis with the complications of
Candida, and that the Company’s FDA filings were designed to verify
this fact.

That Zimycan was aready demonstrated to be safer and more effective
than currently avail able aternatives, and that Hyphanox was a'so more
effective than competing aternatives such as Sporanox and even
Diflucan/fluconazole.

- 13-



That in connection with the filings of the Company’s INDs for
Hyphanox and Zimycan, defendants had filed applications with the FDA
which fully complied with all FDA rulesand regulations, and which did
not omit to disclose adverse information regarding the safety or efficacy
of these drugs.

That the guidance sponsored and/or endorsed by defendants was
reasonable and based on true and accurate statements about the
operational condition and foreseeablefinancial strength and profitability
of the Company.

Defendants Materially False and Mideading
Statements Made During the Class Period

34. Onor about April 28, 2004, defendants filed with the SEC, pursuant to
Form S-1A, the final amendment to the Company’ s Registration Statement and joint
Proxy-Prospectus (the* 1PO Prospectus’) prior to Barrier’ sinitia public offering of 5
million shares of common stock priced at $15.00 per share. 1n addition to providing
genera information about the Company’ s business and operations, the | PO Prospectus
also made specific representations about the products that were most important to the
Company, including Zimycan and Hyphanox, in part, as follows:

Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery,

development and commercialization of pharmaceutical productsin the

field of dermatology. Our goal isto develop a portfolio of innovative

products that address major medical needs in the treatment of

dermatological diseases and disorders. Our product pipeline includes

eight product candidates in various stages of clinical development. Our

four most advanced product candidates are the following:

Sebazole -- a gel for the treatment of seborrheic dermatitis, a disease
characterized by inflammation and scaling of the skin.

-14 -



Zimycan -- an ointment for the treatment of infants with Candida -
associated diaper dermatitis, an inflammatory disease characterized by
diaper rash complicated with an infection by afungus called Candida.

Hyphanox -- an ora therapeutic for the treatment of fungal infections,
including vagina candidiasis, commonly known as vagina yeast
infection, tinea pedis, commonly known as athlete’s foot, and
onychomycosis, commonly known as nail fungus.

Liarozole -- an ora therapeutic for the treatment of congenital
ichthyosis, arare genetic disease characterized by dryness and scaling of
the skin.

* * *

Our four most advanced product candidates are Sebazole, Zimycan,
Hyphanox and Liarozole. [Emphasis added.]

35. In addition to the foregoing, the IPO Prospectus aso purported to
represent that Hyphanox had already been demonstrated to provide advantages over
other competing alternatives, such asfluconazole. Inthisregard, the |PO Prospectus
stated that Hyphanox, which contained itraconazole, were more effective than
fluconazole, as follows:

| n in vitro studies, itraconazole was shown to be more potent than
fluconazole, the active ingredient in Diflucan, against the three most
prevalent strains of yeast present in vaginal candidiasis. Furthermore,
preclinical data indicate that the proportion of itraconazole in affected
tissue, as compared to itraconazole in the blood, after the 24-hour post-
treatment period is greater than such proportion for fluconazole. These
studies suggest that itraconazole may be a mor e effective treatment for
vaginal candidiasis than fluconazole However, Diflucan has become
the leading oral product for the treatment of this condition, we believein
large part because of its more convenient dosing regimen than Sporanox.
We believe that the reformulation of itraconazole into H yphanox may
address this shortcoming of Sporanox in the treatment of vaginal
candidiasis
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* * *

I n thefourth quarter of 2003, we conducted a bioequivalence study of
Hyphanox relative to Sporanox on 52 subjects. Bioequiva ence between
different formulations of a drug exists when the bioavailability of one
formulation relative to the other formulation is within a specified
regulatory range. Bioavailability is a measure of the degree to which a
drug becomes available to the bloodstream after administration. Based
on preliminary datafrom our study, we believethat the bioavailability of
Hyphanox relative to Sporanox is dightly above the upper limit of the
regulatory range to establish bioequivalence. Accordingly, we do not
believe that our study demonstrated bioequivalence between Hyphanox
and Sporanox. Thepreliminary data also indicatethat thevariation of
theamount of drug in the bloodstream among individual patientswas
lower with Hyphanox as compared to Sporanox. [Emphasis added.]

36. The PO Prospectus aso purported to represent that Zimycan had been
demonstrated to provide advantages over other competing aternatives, in part, as
follows:

Prior to the NDA filing, three Phase |11 clinical trials for the use of
Zimycan in the treatment of diaper dermatitis were conducted. As
discussed in greater detail below, the results of these trials were
positive. However, no assessment of the efficacy or safety of a product
candidate can be considered definitive until al clinical trials needed to
support a submission for marketing approval are complete. Successin
earlier clinical trials does not mean that subsequent trials will confirm
the earlier findings. Thesetrials were not limited to Candida -associated
diaper dermatitis. I nfantsin thetrialsweretreated either with Zimycan
or with a placebo consisting solely of the zinc oxide and petrolatum
base. These trials were conducted in the United States and Australia and
enrolled an aggregate of morethan 500 subjects. Thesetrialsmeasured
the performance of Zimycan based upon a number of parameters,
including reduction in thetotal number of rash sites, reduction in rash
score as measured by the decrease in the severity of the rash and
per centage improvement from the baseline condition. I n each of three
trials, Zimycan demonstrated statistically significant resultsin each of
these three measures of performancein comparison with the placebo,
except that in oneof thetrials, thereduction in rash sites approached
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statistical significance with a p-value of 0.054. In addition, Zimycan
was well tolerated, with no serious drug-related adverse events
reported. Theresults of the reduction of rash scoresfrom thesetrialsare
summarized in the table below:

Percentage Reduction in
Diaper Dermatitis Rash Scores
(After Seven Days of Treatment)

Trial 1 Trial 2 Trial 3
Zimycan 5% 5% 85%
Placebo 56% 40% 47%
p-vaue 0.024 <0.001 <0.001

A subanalysis was conducted on data from 84 infants from these trials
who had been diagnosed with Candida -associated diaper dermatitis. The
effect of Zimycan was compared to the placebo by measuring the
respective mycologica cure rates. Mycologica cure is defined as the
elimination of fungus, as confirmed by a culture. In this analysis,

Zimycan exhibited astatistically significant clinical benefit, asillustrated
by the following table:

Candida —associated Digper Dermatitis
Mycological Cure Rates

Zimycan 90%
Placebo 19%
p-vaue <0.001
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37. Thefollowing day, April 29, 2004, Barrier published a release which
announced that the Company had priced theinitia public offering of 5,000,000 shares
of common stock at $15.00 per share. All of the shares were sold by Barrier and, in
connection with this offering, Barrier also granted to the underwriters a 30-day option
to purchase up to an additional 750,000 shares of common stock to cover over-
allotments. Assuming the Offering was fully over-subscribed, the gross proceeds
from the PO exceeded $86 million.

38. Thestatementsreleased in 1136-37 were materialy false and mideading
because they failed to disclose and misrepresented the fully adverse facts:

(@ that the Company had failed to perform its clinical trias in
conformity with FDA guidelines asthey had failed to disclose that they had secretly
substituted the petroleum base within Zimycan, the effect of which was to
substantially lessen the likelihood that the drug could achieve FDA approvdl;

(b) that Hyphanox did not have a better safety or efficacy profile than
fluconazole/Diflucan and, in fact, as investors ultimately learned, Hyphanox was
significantly less effective than fluconazole/Diflucan; and

(c) asareault of theforegoing, defendants lacked any reasonable basis
for their positive statements about Barrier.

39.  Within days of the IPO, on May 13, 2004, Barrier published arelease

announcing its financia results for the first quarter ended March 31, 2004. This
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release represented the financial strength and stability of the Company, in part, as
follows:

Total revenues for the first quarter of 2004 were $181,000,
representing income from the Company's research grant from a
Belgian government agency which commenced in thethird quarter of
2003. The Company had no revenuesin thefirst quarter of 2003.

Net lossfor thefirst quarter of 2004 was$7.5 million, ascomparedto a
net loss of $4.1 million for the first quarter of 2003. The net loss
attributable to common stockholders, which includes the charge for
accretion of preferred stock redemption value, was $10.9 million, or
$22.62 loss per share, for thefirst quarter of 2004, as compared to $5.5
million, or $24.60 loss per share, for the first quarter of 2003.

Research and development expenses for the first quarter of 2004 were
$5.5 million, as compared to $3.6 million for the first quarter of 2003.
Internal costs related to research and development, primarily personnel
and related costs, were $1.8 million in the quarter, as compared to
$787,000 in the corresponding period in 2003. Aggregate spending
related to the Company’s four Phase IIl product candidates:
Zimycan(TM), Sebazole(TM), Hyphanox(TM) and Liarozole remained
relatively constant for the two periods. Initial devel opment expenses of
$601,000 were incurred for its earlier stage clinical product candidates
which include Rambazole(TM), Azoline, Hivenyl(TM) and Atopik, as
well as two products in reformulation.

* * *

At March 31, 2004, the Company had $46.6 million of cash, cash
equiva ents and marketabl e securities, as compared to $53.8 million as of
December 31, 2003. On May 4, 2004, the Company completed itsinitial
public offering of 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock,
resulting in proceeds of approximately $68.0 million, net of underwriting
fees and related expenses. [Emphasis added. ]

40. OnMay 24, 2004, defendant VanLent presented at the UBS 2004 Global
Specialty Pharmaceuticals Conference in New York City. At that conference,

defendant VVanLent reiterated many of the same, or substantially similar, materially
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false and mideading statements that had been published previoudly in the Company’s
prior press releases and SEC filings.

41.  Similarly, on June 3, 2004, defendant Cauwenbergh a so presented at the
Pecific Growth Life Sciences Growth Conference in San Francisco on June 10, 2004.

42.  Thereafter, on July 29, 2004, defendant Cauwenbergh provided an
“update” on the Company a the Banc of America Securities Conference in
Southampton, New Y ork.

43. OnAugust 10, 2004, Barrier published arelease announcing results for
the second quarter ended June 30, 2004. Thisrelease reported the following financia
metrics:

Research and devel opment expenses for the three months ended June 30,
2004 totaled $6.6 million, as compared to $3.9 million for the same
period in 2003.

At June 30, 2004, the Company had $106.6 million in cash, cash
equivalents and marketabl e securities, ascompared to $53.8 million as of
December 31, 2003.

Tota revenues for the second quarter of 2004 were $179,000, derived
from grants that commenced in the third quarter of 2003. The Company
had no revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2003.

Net lossfor the second quarter of 2004 was $8.8 million, as compared to
anet loss of $4.6 million for the second quarter of 2003. The net loss
attributable to common stockholders, which includes preferred stock
accretion of $1.2 million, was $9.9 million, or $.66 |oss per share, for the
second quarter of 2004. . . .

In addition, thisrel ease al so quoted defendant Cauwenbergh, asfollows:

“We're extremely pleased with the progress we are making with
Barriers four Phase Il clinical programs -- Zimycan, Sebazole,
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Hyphanox, and Liarozole. In addition, the proceeds from our initial
public offering provide us with the capital necessary to advance
Barrier’s promising pipeling while building the marketing and
commercialization infrastructure required to bring these therapeutically
important dermatological products to market,” stated [defendant]
Cauwenbergh. [Emphasis added.]

44.  On November 4, 2004, Barrier published arelease announcing resultsfor
the third quarter ended September 30, 2004. This release reported the following
financial metrics:

Research and development expenses for the three months ended
September 30, 2004 totaled $8.0 million, as compared to $4.0 million for
the same period in 2003.

At September 30, 2004, the Company had $100.6 million in cash, cash
equiva ents and marketable securities, ascompared to $53.8 million as of
December 31, 2003.

Total revenuesfor thethird quarter of 2004 were $223,000 derived from
a grant that commenced in the third quarter of 2003 and from revenue
related to a commercial contract.

Net lossfor the third quarter of 2004 was $10.2 million, ascomparedto a
net loss of $4.6 million for the third quarter of 2003. The net loss
attributable to common stockholderswas $10.2 million, or $0.47 loss per
share. . ..

In addition to the foregoing, this release aso quoted defendant
Cauwenbergh, as follows:

“Barrier has defined a clear vision and strategy for developing new
pharmaceuticals to address the therapeutic needs of dermatology
patients,” stated [defendant] Cauwenbergh. “As we advance our
portfolio of clinical-stage drug candidates, our objectiveisto develop a
single, global brand strategy for Barrier and its products that will be
executed locally through strategic aliances. In support of our anticipated
commercia launch of Zimycan next year, we have established alliances
with HEALTHPOINT, Ltd. for distribution to healthcare institutionsin
the United States and Canada and with Grupo Ferrer Internacional, S.A.
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for the commercialization of Zimycan and three additional product
candidates in most of Western Europe, Latin America and in select
countriesin Africa. We anticipateinitial salesof Zimycan in Europein
thefirst quarter of 2005,” added [defendant] Cauwenbergh. [Emphasis

added.]
45.  OnJanuary 24, 2005, with shares of the Company trading over $20.00,

defendants announced that defendants had filed aregistration statement with the SEC
In connection with the proposed offering of an additional 4 million shares of common
stock, plus an additional 600,000 shares of stock to cover over-subscription
alotments. TheCompany commenced marketing effortsto effectuate this Secondary
Offering on or about February 1, 2005. Also in connection with this Secondary
Offering, later, on February 10, 2005, defendants filed a Registration Statement and
joint Proxy-Prospectus with the SEC (the “ Secondary Prospectus’).

46. The Secondary Prospectus contained many of the same materially false
and mid eading statements about the Company, and about its devel opment of Zimycan
and Hyphanox, as had been published previoudly in press releases and SEC filings,
and as reproduced in part, herein, supra. According to the Secondary Prospectus, 4
million shares of Barrier stock were offered to the public at a price of $19.50 per
share.

47.  Inaddition to the foregoing, the Secondary Prospectus also purported to
represent that Hyphanox had already been demonstrated to provide advantages over

other competing alternatives, such as fluconazole. In this regard, the Secondary
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Offering Prospectus stated that Hyphanox, which contained itraconazole, was more
effective than fluconazole, as follows:

In in vitro studies, itraconazole was shown to be more potent than
fluconazole, the active ingredient in Diflucan, against the three most
prevalent strains of yeast present in vaginal candidiasis. Furthermore,
preclinical dataindicate that the proportion of itraconazole in affected
tissue, as compared to itraconazole in the blood, after the 24-hour post-
treatment period is greater than such proportion for fluconazole. These

studies suggest that itraconazole may be a mor e effective treatment for
vaginal candidiasis than fluconazole However, Diflucan has become
the leading oral product for the treatment of this condition, we believein
large part because of its more convenient dosing regimen than Sporanox.
We believe that the reformulation of itraconazoleinto Hyphanox may
address this shortcoming of Sporanox in the treatment of vaginal

candidiasis.

* * *

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we conducted a bioequivalence study of

Hyphanox relative to Sporanox on 52 subjects. Bioequival ence between
different formulations of a drug existswhen the bioavailability of one
formulation relative to the other formulation is within a specified

regulatory range. Bioavailability isameasure of the degreeto which a
drug becomes available to the bloodstream after administration. Based
on data from this study, the bioavailability of Hyphanox relative to
Sporanox is dlightly above the upper limit of the regulatory range to
establish bioequivalence. [Emphasis added.]

48. The statements made by defendants and contained in the Company’s
Secondary Offering Registration Statement and in §143-44 were each materialy false
and mideading when made, for the reasons stated herein in 938, supra.

49.  On February 28, 2005, Barrier published arelease announcing resultsfor
the fourth quarter and year end December 31, 2004. This release reported the

following financial metrics:
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Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $897,000,

which represents an increase of $530,000, as compared to revenues of
$367,000 in 2003.

Research and development expenses for the year ended 2004 totaled
$30.9 million, as compared to $17.5 million for fiscal year 2003. . . .
Research and development expenses for the fourth quarter of 2004
totaled $10.8 million, as compared to $6.0 million for the same period in
2003.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had over $89.1 million in cash,

cash equiva ents and marketabl e securities, as compared to $53.8 million
as of December 31, 2003.

Net lossfor the year ended 2004 was $39.7 million, as compared to anet
loss of $20.2 million for the year ended 2003. The net loss attributable to
common stockholderswas $44.3 million, or $3.02 loss per share, for the
year ended 2004, which includes preferred stock accretion of $4.6
million in 2004. . . .

The net loss for the fourth quarter of 2004 was $13.3 million, as
compared to anet loss of $6.9 million for the fourth quarter of 2003. The
net loss attributable to common stockhol ders was $13.3 million, or $0.62
loss per share. . ...

This release a so quoted defendants Cauwenbergh, as follows:

“Barrier had a successful year in 2004 as marked by clinical-stage
product advancements, the continued building of a commercial
infrastructure, and the completion of our initial public offering. These
advancements confirm our team’s commitment to building a new
pharmaceutical company with innovative products to address the
thergpeutic needs of dermatology patients,” stated [defendant]
Cauwenbergh.

“2005 will mark our transition into a commercial entity as our first
year with product revenues in addition to our historical grant and
contract revenues. By acquiring Solage(R) (mequinol 2%, tretinoin
0.01%) Topical Solution, apatented, prescription product, which we now
market in the United States and Canada, we have a strong start to 2005.
We also anticipate launching Zimycan(TM) during the second half of
2005 inthe United States. Finally, in addition to these events with short
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term commercia impact, the progresswe aremakingin our other short

and mediumtermi nternal development programs continuesto support

our overall dtrategic goal of building Barrier into a premiere

prescription dermatology company,” added [defendant] Cauwenbergh.

[Emphasis added.]

50. On or about March 29, 2005, defendants filed with the SEC the
Company’sForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, signed by defendants
Cauwenbergh and VanLent, among others. In addition to making substantially similar
statements concerning the Company’ s operations as had been made in the Company’s
February 28, 2005 release, the Company’ s 2004 Form 10-K also contained statements
concerning the Company’ s controls and procedures, and statements concerning the
progression of the Company’s pipeline, as had also been previoudy reported in
Barrier’s prior SEC filings and corporate releases.

51. On May 3, 2005, Barrier published a release announcing its results for
thefirst quarter ended March 31, 2005. Thisrelease reported the following financial

metrics;

Total revenuefor the quarter was $653,000 as compared to $181,000 for
the same period in 2004.

Research and development expenses for the three months ended March

31, 2005, totaled $9.5 million, as compared to $5.5 million for the same
period in 2004.

Net lossfor the first quarter of 2005 was $12.2 million, ascomparedto a
net loss of $7.5 million for the first quarter of 2004. The net loss
attributable to common stockholderswas $12.2 million, or $0.53 loss per
share, for the first quarter of 2005.

This release aso quoted defendants Cauwenbergh, as follows:
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“ Thefirst months of 2005 have seen an acceleration in the commercial
activities at Barrier Therapeutics,” commented [defendant]
Cauwenbergh. “The acquisition of U.S. and Canadian rightsto Solagé®
(mequinol 2%, tretinoin 0.01%) Topical Solution with the associated
revenue from that product, as well as the upcoming FDA decision on
the Zimycan(TM) NDA which we are expecting in late May or early
June, have caused us to begin the implementation of our
commercialization strategy. Asyou saw inour pressrelease yesterday,
the Company is gearing up to start visiting the U.S. target physician
population for Solagé® with an initial sales force of up to 30
representatives. In addition to this rapid expansion of our commercial
Infrastructure, our R& D group has continued to advance the various
clinical stage products in our pipeline aong the timelines previousy
announced.” [Emphasis added.]

52.  Thestatements made by defendantsin [1/49-51 were eech materidly fase
and midleading when made, for the reasons stated herein in 138, supra.

53.  OnMay 25, 2005, the Company surprised investors by announcing that
Barrier had recelved a “Not Approvable’ Letter from the FDA for Zimycan.
According to the Company’s release, this letter was prompted by the FDA’s
conclusion that defendants had failed to demonstrate important safety criteria from
Zimycan. Thisrelease stated, in part, the following:

Barrier Therapeutics Receives Not Approvable Letter From the
FDA for Zimycan

Barrier Therapeutics, Inc. (NASDAQ: BTRX), a pharmaceutical

company developing and commercializing products in the field of
dermatology, today announced that the U.S. Food & Drug
Administration (FDA or Agency) hasissued a not approvable letter
dated May 24, 2005 for itsNDA for Zimycan(TM) (0.25% miconazole
nitrate, 15% zinc oxide, and 81.35% white petrolatum ointment) for the
treatment of diaper dermatitis complicated by candidiasis. The FDA
action is based on a single deficiency. The Agency said there is
insufficient information to characterize the systemic exposure to
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miconazole in infants. Characterization of systemic exposure to
miconazole is a component of the safety evaluation of the product.

The Agency indicated that the percutaneous absor ption study that was
in the application was not sufficient since the product tested used a
different grade of petrolatum than that used in the pivotal clinical
studies. Both grades meet the same USP specifications for petrolatum.
The percutaneous absorption study in the application concluded that
there was minimal systemic absorption of miconazole. [Emphasis
added.]

54.  While defendant Cauwenbergh was quoted in the Company’ srelease as
being “ disappointed and surprised” by the FDA'’s decision, defendants also used
this release to condition investors to believe that this FDA Letter would not
materially impact the Company going forward, and that defendants were till
“dedicated to bringing this product to the market.” In part, because defendants
continued to purport to maintain adequate internal controls and procedures, investors
were mollified when defendant Cauwenbergh also stated that, “Barrier will continue
discussions with the Agency and islooking at all available options. We believe that
one option isto conduct asecond . . . study using the current product.”

55.  Inresponse to this announcement, the price of Barrier common stock
declined from $17.03 per share to $15.40 per share. Defendants, however, continued
to midead the market.

56. Asevidenceof the effectiveness of defendants' representationsregarding

the continued strength and foreseeabl e profitability of the Company, defendantshelda
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Conference Call prior to the market opening on May 25, 2005 and downplayed the
risksfacing the Company. During the conference call defendants stated, in part, that:

there was no reason to adjust guidance following the receipt of the Not
Approvable Letter for Zimycan;

that defendants had never considered the impact of changing the
petrolatum base used in Zimycan during the FDA testing and approval
process,

that because defendants had changed grades of petroleum during the
study, that Barrier could not now ssmply adjust grades and refile the test
results with the FDA; and

regardless of the problems cited, the Not Approvable Letter did not
appear to be amajor setback for the Company and defendants believed
that they could replicate the required test data using afairly small test
group, and obtain the necessary test results in the near-term.

The True Financial and Operational Condition
of Barrier is Belatedly Disclosed

57.  On June 29, 2005, defendants shocked the market after they caused
Barrier to announce that the Company’s Phase 3 results failled to demonstrate that
Hyphanox worked aswell asfluconazole. To investors amazement, the Company’s
release stated, in part, the following:

Barrier Therapeutics Announces Phase 3 Results for
Hyphanox(TM) in Vaginal Candidiasis Product Fails to Meet
Primary Endpoint of Non-Inferiority Versus Fluconazole. . .

Barrier Therapeutics, Inc. (NASDAQ: BTRX), a pharmaceutical
company developing and commercializing products in the field of
dermatology, today announced that its oral antifungal product
candidate, Hyphanox(TM), failed to reach the primary endpoint of
therapeutic curein itsPhase 3 non-inferiority trial for thetreatment of
vaginal candidiasis, commonly known asavaginal yeastinfection. The
trial was designed to demonstrate that a single dose of Hyphanox, a

-28-



novel patented formulation of the antifungal itraconazole, is not
inferior to a single dose of fluconazole.

“The outcome of the study is disappointing. While we were able to
demondtrate that clinical efficacy was not inferior to that of
fluconazole, the therapeutic cure, which aso includes the mycol ogical
assessment, did not meet the non-inferiority criteria,” said [defendant]
Cauwenbergh. . . .

Resultsfrom this Phase 3 trial indicate that 26% (105/403) of subjects
treated with Hyphanox reached the primary endpoint as compared to
37% (148/397) treated with fluconazole. . . .

Hyphanox achieved non+inferiority for the secondary endpoint of clinical
cure. The clinical cure rate for Hyphanox was 58% (233/403)
compared to 65% (256/397) for fluconazole. Hyphanox failed to
achievenon-inferiority for the secondary endpoint of mycological cure,
which assessed the presence of yeast a the test of cure visit (day 25).
Themycological curerate for Hyphanox was 36% (143/403) compared
t0 49% (193/397) for fluconazole. An anadysis of thetimeto resolution, a
secondary endpoint based on the subject diary, showed Hyphanox
achieved nor+inferiority with fluconazole. [Emphasis added.]

58.  Based onthe huge disparity between Defendants' prior guidance, and the

realization that Hyphanox failed to work as well as Fluconazole, the most widely
proscribed treatment for the fungal yeast infections, on June 30, 2005, shares of the
Company’s stock plummeted over $6.75 per share - - a decline of over 45% - - to

bel ow $8.00 per sharein regular trading on the NASDAQ. On volume of morethan 4

million shares traded - - 20 times the Company’ s daily average trading volume.

59. Pacific Growth Euities analyst Petti Bank called the negative trid

outcome “strike-two” for the Company, and lowered the near-term price target to

$12.00 per share. Morgan Stanley also slashed its near-term price target on shares of
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Barrier from $21.00 per share to $12.00, noting that this was the second “ major
setback” for Barrier’s near-term drug pipeline.

60. The market for Barrier’s common stock was open, well-developed and
efficient at all relevant times. As a result of these materially false and misleading
statements and failuresto disclose, Barrier common stock traded at artificially inflated
pricesduring the Class Period. Plaintiff and other membersof the Class purchased or
otherwise acquired Barrier common stocking upon theintegrity of the market price of
Barrier common stock and market information relating to Barrier, and have been
damaged thereby.

61. During the Class Period, defendants materially misled the investing
public, thereby inflating the price of Barrier common stock by publicly issuing false
and mideading statements and omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make
defendants' statements, as set forth herein, not false and misleading. Said statements
and omissions were materially false and misleading in that they failed to disclose
material adverse information and misrepresented the truth about the Company, its
business and operations, as alleged herein.

62. At dl relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions
particularized in this Complaint directly or proximately caused or were asubstantial
contributing cause of the damages sustained by plaintiff and other members of the
Class. Asdescribed herein, during the Class Period, defendants made or caused to be

made a series of materially false or mideading statements about Barrier’ s business,
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prospects and operations. These material misstatements and omissions had the cause
and effect of creating in the market an unrealistically positive assessment of Barrier
and its business, prospects and operations, thus causing the Company’ s common stock
to be overvalued and artificially inflated at al relevant times. Defendants’ materially
false and midleading statements during the Class Period resulted in plaintiff and other
members of the Class purchasing the Company’ s common stock at artificidly inflated
prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein.

CAUSATION AND ECONOMIC LOSS

63. During the Class Period, as detalled herein, defendants engaged in a
scheme to deceive the market, and a course of conduct that artificialy inflated
Barrier’ s stock price and operated as afraud or deceit on Class Period purchasers of
Barrier’ sstock by misrepresenting the Company’ sfinancial results. Over aperiod of
approximately fourteen months, defendants misrepresented and failed to disclose the
truth about the Company’ s products. Ultimately, however, when defendants’ prior
misrepresentations and fraudulent conduct came to be revealed and was apparent to
Investors, shares of Barrier declined precipitoudly - - evidence that the prior artificial
inflation inthe price of Barrier’ sshareswas eradicated. Asaresult of their purchases
of Barrier stock during the Class Period, plaintiff and other members of the Class
suffered economic losses, i.e. damages under the federa securities laws.

64. By improperly characterizing the Company’s operations and
misrepresenting its prospects, defendants presented a misleading image of Barrier's
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bus ness and future growth prospects. During the Class Period, defendants repeatedly
emphasized the ability of the Company to conduct the development and testing of its
Zimycan and Hyphanox products in a manner reasonably calculated to obtain FDA
approval, and in amanner that did not misrepresent the safety and efficacy of these
drugs. These claims caused and maintained the artificial inflation in Barrier’ s stock
price throughout the Class Period and until the truth about the Company was
ultimately reveaed to investors.

65. Defendants false and materially mideading statements had the intended
effect of causing Barrier’ ssharestotrade at artificially inflated level s throughout the
Class Period - - reaching a Class Period high of over $22.40 per share in early
February 2005.

66. Onboth May 25, 2005 and June 29, 2005, however, defendants revealed
that the Company’ s products were not as represented. These belated disclosures had
an immediate, adverse impact on the price of Barrier shares.

67. Thesebelated revelationsa so evidenced defendants' prior falsification of
Barrier’ sbusiness prospects due to defendants’ fal se statements. Asinvestorsandthe
market ultimately learned, the Company’s prior business prospects had been
significantly overstated, as had defendants ability to conduct clinical trids in
accordance with FDA standards. As this adverse information became known to
investors, the prior artificial inflation began to be eliminated from Barrier’s share

price and investors were damaged as aresult of the related share price decline.
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68. ThedeclineinBarrier’sstock price at the end of the Class Period wasa
direct result of the nature and extent of defendants' fraud being revealed to investors
and to the market. The timing and magnitude of Barrier’ s stock price decline negates
any inference that the losses suffered by plaintiff and the other members of the Class
were caused by changed market conditions, macroeconomic or industry factors, or
even Company-specific facts unrelated to defendants' fraudulent conduct. During the
same period in which Barrier’s share price fell over 50% as a result of defendants
fraud being revealed, he Standard & Poor’s 500 securities index was relatively
unchanged. The economicloss, i.e., damages suffered by plaintiff and other members
of the Class, wasadirect result of defendants’ fraudulent schemeto artificially inflate
the price of Barrier’ sstock and the subsequent significant declinein the value of the
Company’ sshareswhen defendants' prior misstatements and other fraudulent conduct
was revealed.

Additional Scienter Allegations

69. Asalleged herein, defendants acted with scienter in that each defendant
knew that the public documents and statementsissued or disseminated in the name of
the Company were materially false and mideading; knew that such statements or
documents would be issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly
and substantially participated or acquiesced in the issuance or dissemination of such
statements or documents as primary violations of the federal securitieslaws. As set

forth elsewhere herein in detail, defendants, by virtue of their receipt of information
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reflecting the true facts regarding Barrier, their control over, and/or receipt and/or
modification of Barrier’s allegedly materially misleading misstatements and/or their
associations with the Company which made them privy to confidential prrietary
information concerning Barrier, participated in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.

70. Defendants were motivated to materially misrepresent to the SEC and
investors the true financial condition of the Company because it: (i) decelved the
investing public regarding Barrier’s business, operations, management and the
intrinsic value of Barrier common stock; (ii) enabled defendants to register for sale
and sell over 10 million shares of Company stock in connection with the Company’s
Initial Public Offering and follow-on Secondary Offering; and (iii) caused plaintiff
and other members of the Class to purchase Barrier common stock at artificialy
inflated prices.

Applicability Of Presumption Of Reliance:
Fraud On The Market Doctrine

71. At dl relevant times, the market for Barrier’s common stock was an
efficient market for the following reasons, among others:
(@ Barrier’sstock met the requirementsfor listing, and waslisted and
actively traded on the NASDAQ, a highly efficient and automated market;
(b) asaregulated issuer, Barrier filed periodic public reports with the

SEC and the NASDAQ:



(c) Barrier regularly communicated with public investors via
established market communication mechanisms, including through regular
disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major newswire services
and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications with the
financial press and other similar reporting services; and

(d) Barrier wasfollowed by severa securities analysts employed by
major brokerage firm(s) who wrote reports which were distributed to the salesforce
and certain customers of their respective brokeragefirm(s). Each of these reportswas
publicly available and entered the public marketplace.

72.  As aresult of the foregoing, the market for Barrier ommon stock
promptly digested current information regarding Barrier from al publicly available
sources and reflected such information in Barrier stock price. Under these
circumstances, al purchasers of Barrier common stock during the Class Period
suffered similar injury through their purchase of Barrier common stock at artificially
inflated prices and a presumption of reliance applies.

No Safe Harbor

73. Thestatutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under
certain circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded
inthiscomplaint. Many of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identified
as“forward-looking statements’ when made. To the extent there were any forward-

looking statements, there were no meaningful cautionary statements identifying
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important factorsthat could cause actual resultsto differ materially from those in the
purportedly forward-looking statements. Alternatively, to the extent that the Statutory
safe harbor does apply to any forward-1ooking statements pleaded herein, defendants
areliablefor those false forward-looking statements because at the time each of those
forward-looking statements was made, the particular speaker knew that the particul ar
forward-looking statement was fase, and/or the forward-looking statement was
authorized and/or approved by an executive officer of Barrier who knew that those
statements were fal se when made.
Basis of Allegations

74. Plaintiff has aleged the following based upon the investigation of
plantiff’s counsel, which included a review of SEC filings by Barrier, as well as
regulatory filings and reports, securities analysts' reports and advisories about the
Company, press releases and other public statements issued by the Company, and
media reports about the Company, and plaintiff believes that substantial additional
evidentiary support will exist for the alegations set forth herein after a reasonable
opportunity for discovery.

COUNT |

Against All Defendants
For Violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act

75.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained

above, asif set forth herein only to the extent, however, that such allegations do not

alegefraud, scienter or theintent of the defendantsto defraud plaintiff or members of
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the Class. ThisCount is predicated upon defendants’ strict liability for making false
and materially mideading statementsin the Registration Statements and Prospectuses.
This Count isasserted by plaintiff against all defendants by and on behalf of persons
who acquired shares of the Company pursuant to the fal se Registration Statementsand
Proxy Statementsissued in connection with the April 2004 Initial Public Offering and
the Company’s February 2005 Secondary Offering, or both.

76. Barier istheissuer of the stock issued viafalse Registration Statements
and Proxy Statements. Assuch, Barrier isstrictly liable for each false and miseading
statements contained therein.

77. The Individual Defendants were each signatories of the respective
Registration Statements; therefore, each of these defendants had a duty to make a
reasonable investigation of the statements contained in the respective Registration
Statements and Prospectuses to ensure that said statements were true and that there
was no omission to state any material fact required to be stated in order to make the
statements contained therein not misleading. In the exercise of reasonable care,
defendants should have known of the material misstatements and omissions contai ned
In the Registration Statements and Prospectuses and also should have known of the
omissions of materia fact necessary to make the statements made therein not
mideading. As such, each of these defendants are liable to plaintiff and the Class.

78.  Plaintiff and other members of the Class acquired their Barrier stock

without knowledge of the untruths and/or omissions alleged herein. Plaintiff and the
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other members of the Class were thus damaged by defendants' misconduct and by the
material misstatements and omissions of the aforementioned Prospectuses.

79.  Thisaction was brought within one year after the discovery of the untrue
statements and omissions and within three years after the April 2004 1PO and the
February 2005 Secondary Offering of Barrier common stock.

COUNT Il

Violation of Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act
Against All Defendants

80. PMaintiff repeats and realleges each and every alegation contained above.

8l. This Count is brought by plaintiff pursuant to Section 12(a)(2) of the
Securities Act on behalf of al purchasers of Barrier shares in connection with and
traceable to the April 2004 Initial Public Offering or February 2005 Secondary
Offering. This cause of action is brought against al defendants.

82. Defendantswere sallers, offerors, and/or solicitors of salesof the Barrier
shares offered pursuant to the Registration Statements and Prospectuses issued in
connection with the April 2004 1PO or February 2005 Secondary Offering.

83. The Barrier Registration Statements and Prospectuses issued in
connection with both the April 2004 1PO or February 2005 Secondary Offering each
contained untrue statements of material facts, omitted to state other facts necessary to

make the statements made not misleading, and concealed and failed to disclose



material facts. Defendants actions of solicitation included participating in the
preparation of the false and mideading Prospectus and Registration Statement.

84. Thedefendants owed to the purchasers of Barrier shares, which were sold
in the April 2004 1PO and February 2005 Secondary Offering, the duty to make a
reasonable and diligent investigation of the statements contained in the respective
Prospectuses and Registration Statements, to insure that such statementsweretrue and
that there was no omission to state a material fact required to be stated in order to
make the statements contained therein not misleading. These defendants knew of, or
in the exercise of reasonable care should have known of, the misstatements and
omissions contained in the 1PO or Secondary Offering materials as set forth above.

85. Paintiff and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired
Barrier shares pursuant to and traceabl e to the defective Registration Statements and
Prospectuses. Plaintiff did not know, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence could
not have known, of the untruths and omissions contained therein.

86. Plaintiff, individually and representatively, hereby offer to tender to
defendants those securities which plaintiff and other Class members continue to own,
on behalf of all members of the Class who continue to own such securities, in return
for the consideration paid for those securities together with interest thereon.

87. By reason of the conduct aleged herein, these defendants violated, and/or
controlled a person who violated, 812(a)(2) of the Securities Act. Accordingly,

plaintiff and members of the Class who hold Barrier shares purchased in the April
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2004 1 PO or February 2005 Secondary Offering have theright to rescind and recover
the consideration paid for their Barrier shares and, hereby elect to rescind and tender
their Barrier shares to the defendants sued herein. Plaintiff and Class members who
have sold their Barrier shares are entitled to rescissory damages.

88. Lessthanthreeyearsedapsed from the time that the securities upon which
this Count is brought were sold to the public to the time of the filing of this action.
L ess than one year elapsed from the time when plaintiff discovered or reasonably
could have discovered the facts upon which this Count is based to the time of the
filing of this action.

COUNT 11

Against the Individual Defendants
Violation of Section 15 of the Securities Act

89.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained
aboveasif set forth herein. This Count is asserted against the Individual Defendants.

90. Throughout the Class Period, the Individual Defendants acted as
controlling persons of Barrier within the meaning of 815 of the Securities Act. By
reason of their stock ownership, senior management positions and/or directorships at
the Company, as aleged above, these defendants, individually and acting pursuant to
acommon plan, had the power to influence and exercised the sameto cause Barrier to

engage in the unlawful acts and conduct complained of herein.



91. By reason of such conduct, the defendants named in this Count areliable
pursuant to 815 of the Securities Act. As a direct and proximate result of their
wrongful conduct, plaintiffs and the Class suffered damagesin connection with their
acquisition of Barrier common stock.

COUNT IV

Against All Defendants for
Violation of Section 10(b) of
the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
Promulgated Thereunder

92. Paintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above
asif fully set forth herein,

93.  During the Class Period, defendants carried out a plan, scheme and
course of conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i)
deceive the investing public regarding Barrier’ s business, operations, management and
theintrinsic value of Barrier common stock; (ii) enable defendantsto register for sale
and sell over 10 million shares of Company stock in connection with the Company’s
Initial Public Offering and follow-on Secondary Offering; and (iii) cause plaintiff and
other members of the Class to purchase Barrier common stock at artificially inflated
prices. In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct,
defendants, jointly and individually (and each of them) took the actions set forth

heran.
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9. Defendants. (a) employed devices, schemes, and artificesto defraud; (b)
made untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts
necessary to make the statements not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices,
and a course of business which operated as afraud and deceit upon the purchasers of
the Company’ s common stock in an effort to maintain artificially high market prices
for Barrier's common stock in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5. All defendants are sued either as primary participantsin the wrongful and
Illegal conduct charged herein or as controlling persons as alleged below.

95. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the
use, means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged
and participated in a continuous course of conduct to conceal alverse material
information about the business, operations and future prospects of Barrier as specified
herein.

96. These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud,
whilein possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts,
practices, and acourse of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of
Barrier’ svalue and performance and continued substantial growth, which included the
making of, or the participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts
and omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made
about Barrier and its business operations and future prospects in the light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not miseading, as set forth more
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particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business
which operated as afraud and deceit upon the purchasers of Barrier common stock
during the Class Period.

97. Each of the Individual Defendants’ primary liability, and controlling
person liability, arises from the following facts: (i) the Individual Defendants were
high-level executives and/or directors at the Company during the Class Period and
members of the Company’s management team or had control thereof; (ii) each of
these defendants, by virtue of his responsibilities and activities as a senior officer
and/or director of the Company was privy to and participated in the creation,
development and reporting of the Company’s internal budgets, plans, projections
and/or reports; (iii) each of these defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and
familiarity with the other defendants and was advised of and had access to other
members of the Company’s management team, internal reports and other data and
information about the Company’ sfinances, operations, and sales at al relevant times;
and (iv) each of these defendants was aware of the Company’s dissemination of
information to the investing public which they knew or recklesdly disregarded was
materially false and mideading.

98. The Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and
omissions of material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the
truth in that they failed to ascertain and to disclose such facts. Such defendants

material misrepresentations and/or omissionswere done knowingly or recklessly for
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the purpose and effect of concealing Barrier’ s operating condition and future business
prospects from the investing public and supporting the artificially inflated price of its
common stock. Asdemonstrated by defendants’ overstatements and misstatements of
the Company’s business, operations and earnings throughout the Class Period,
defendants, if they did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and
omissions alleged, were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by recklessy
refraining from taking those steps necessary to discover whether those statements
were false or mideading.

99. Asaresult of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading
information and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price
of Barrier common stock was artificialy inflated during the Class Period. In
ignorance of the fact that market prices of Barrier’s publicly-traded common stock
were artificidly inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and misleading
statements made by defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the
securitiestrade, and/or on the absence of material adverseinformation that was known
to or recklessly disregarded by defendants but not disclosed in public statements by
defendants during the Class Period, plaintiff and the other members of the Class
acquired Barrier common stock during the Class Period at artificially high pricesand
were damaged thereby.

100. At thetime of said misrepresentations and omissions, plaintiff and other

members of the Classwereignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had
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plaintiff and the other members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth
regarding the problems that Barrier was experiencing, which were not disclosed by
defendants, plaintiff and other members of the Class would not have purchased or
otherwise acquired their Barrier common stock, or, if they had acquired such common
stock during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated
prices which they paid.

101. By virtueof theforegoing, defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

102. As a direct and proximate result of defendants wrongful conduct,
plaintiff and the other members of the Class suffered damagesin connection with their
respective purchases and sales of the Company’s common stock during the Class
Period.

COUNT V

Violation of Section 20(a) of
the Exchange Act
Against the Individual Defendants

103. Paintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above
asif fully set forth herein.

104. ThelIndividua Defendants acted as controlling persons of Barrier within
the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act asalleged herein. By virtue of their
high-level positions, and their ownership and contractua rights, participation in and/or
awareness of the Company’s operations and/or intimate knowledge of the false
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financial statements filed by the Company with the SEC and disseminated to the
investing public, the Individual Defendants had the power to influence and control and
did influence and controal, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of the Company,
including the content and dissemination of the various statements which plaintiff
contends are false and mideading. TheIndividual Defendants were provided with or
had unlimited accessto copies of the Company’ sreports, pressreleases, public filings
and other statements alleged by plaintiff to be mideading prior to and/or shortly after
these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the
statements or cause the statements to be corrected.

105. In particular, each of these defendants had direct and supervisory
involvement in the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, ispresumed
to have had the power to control or influence the particular transactions giving riseto
the securities violations as aleged herein, and exercised the same.

106. Asset forth above, Barrier and the Individual Defendants each violated
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissions as dleged in this Complaint.
By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, the Individual Defendantsareliable
pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. Asadirect and proximate result of
defendants wrongful conduct, plaintiff and other members of the Class suffered
damagesin connection with their purchases of the Company’ s common stock during
the Class Period.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff praysfor relief and judgment, as follows:
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A.  Determining that thisaction isaproper class action, designating plaintiff
as Lead Plaintiff and certifying plaintiff asa class representative under Rule 23 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and plaintiff’s counsal as Lead Counsdl;

B.  Awarding compensatory damagesin favor of plaintiff and the other Class
members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained asa
result of defendants' wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at tria, including interest
thereon;

C. Awarding plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this action, including counsel fees and expert fees,

D. Awarding extraordinary, equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted
by law, equity and the federal statutory provisionssued hereunder, pursuant to Rules
64 and 65 and any appropriate state law remedies to assure that the Class has an
effective remedy; and

E.  Awarding Plaintiff and the classrescission on Count Il to the extent they
still hold Barrier stock, or if sold, awarding rescissory damages in accordance with
Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

F.  Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands atria by jury.
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DATED: October 11, 2005

COHN LIFLAND PEARLMAN
HERRMANN & KNOPF LLP
PETER PEARLMAN

PETER PEARLMAN
Park 80 Plaza West-One,
Saddle Brook, NJ 07663
Telephone: 201/845-9600
201/845-9423 (fax)
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SAMUEL H. RUDMAN

200 Broadhollow Road, Suite 406

Melville, NY 11747

Telephone: 631/367-7100
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LLP

JACK FRUCHTER
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Telephone: 212/279-5050

212/279-3655 (fax)

LAW OFFICES OF MICHAEL SWICK
MICHAEL SWICK

One William Street, Suite 900

New York, NY 10004

Telephone: 212/584-0770
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